
 

 

CITY OF PORT WENTWORTH 
CITY COUNCIL 

  JULY 28, 2022 

 

 

  

 Council Meeting Room Regular Meeting 7:00 PM 

7224 GA HIGHWAY 21 
PORT WENTWORTH, GA  31407 

City of Port Wentworth Generated: 7/26/2022 2:22 PM Page 1   

1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER 

2. PRAYER AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

3. ROLL CALL - CLERK OF COUNCIL 

4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

5. RECOGNITION OF SPECIAL GUESTS 

6. PUBLIC COMMENTS - REGISTERED SPEAKERS 

7. ELECTIONS & APPOINTMENTS 

8. ADOPTION OF MINUTES 

A. Regular Council Meeting Minutes - June 23, 2022 

9. COMMUNICATIONS & PETITIONS 

10. COMMITTEE REPORTS 

11. CONSENT AGENDA 

12. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

A. 2nd Reading Insurance Company License Fee 

B. 2nd Reading Zoning Map Amendment Application submitted by the City of Port 

Wentworth, for PIN #’s 70913 01013 (18 Gulfstream Road), 70913 01012 (60 Clifton 
Boulevard), 70913 01007 (84 Clifton Boulevard), 70913 01010 (Gulfstream Road), 70913 

01008 (34 Gulfstream Road), 70913 01011 (116 Gulfstream Road), 70913 01001 (120 
Gulfstream Road), 70914 01001B (120 Gulfstream Road), 70914 01001A (Gulfstream 
Road), 70970A02004 (Gulfstream Road), 70970A02006 (20 Mincey Boulevard), 
70970A02007 (24 Mincey Boulevard), 70970A02003 (32 Mincey Boulevard), 70914 
01003 (46 Mincey Boulevard), 70914 01004 (60 Mincey Boulevard), and 70970A01002 
(190 Gulfstream Road) to zone the properties P-I-2 (Planned Industrial) for the purpose 
of establishing City of Port Wentworth Zoning Districts. 

13. NEW BUSINESS 

A. Technology Center Design and Build out 

B. Site Plan Review Application submitted by Marc Liverman, P.E., Atlantic Coast Consulting, 
Inc., on behalf of Drayton-Parker Companies, LLC., for PIN # 70035 01010 (Highway 21) 
for a Specific Development Site Plan to allow a Truck & Chassis Yard (Port Wentworth 
Truck and Chassis Storage Yard) in a P-I-1 (Planned Industrial) Zoning District 



Agenda City Council July 28, 2022 

City of Port Wentworth Generated: 7/26/2022 2:22 PM Page 2   

 

➢Public Hearing 

➢Action 

C. Site Plan Review Application submitted by Felipe Toledo, P.E., Thomas & Hutton of behalf 
of LRE Crossgate North, LLC., for PIN # 7-0035-01-007 (Northeast corner of Crossgate 
Rd & Jimmy Deloach Parkway) for a Specific Development Site Plan to allow a warehouse 
development (NFI Crossgate Industrial Park) in a P-I-1 (Planned Industrial) Zoning 
District 

 

➢Public Hearing 
➢Action 

D. Site Plan Review Application submitted by Toss Allen, P.E., Allen Engineering Services, 

LLC., on behalf of Peachtree Development and Investments, LLC., for PIN # 7-0037-02-
008 (Magellan Blvd) for a Specific Development Site Plan to allow an Advanced Auto Parts 

Store in a P-C-3 (Planned General Business) Zoning District 

14. RESOLUTIONS/ORDINANCES/PROCLAMATIONS 

15. EXECUTIVE SESSION 

16. ADJOURNMENT 



 City Council Meeting: 07/28/22 07:00 PM 
 7224 GA Highway 21 Department: All 
 Port Wentworth, GA  31407 Category: Ordinance 
  Prepared By: Zahnay Smoak 

 SCHEDULED Department Head: Steve Davis 

  

 AGENDA ITEM (ID # 2711) DOC ID: 2711  

Updated: 7/25/2022 3:30 PM by Zahnay Smoak  Page 1 

2nd Reading Insurance Company License Fee 

Issue/Item:  After the 2020 Census our population grew beyond 10,000 people which pulls us 

into a new category with the Georgia Insurance Commissioners office.  We now need change our 

license fee structure for insurance companies operating within our city boundaries.   
 

 

Background: Current rate being charged is an annual $50 license fee.  The new rate will be an 

annual $75 license fee.   
 

Facts and Findings: These funds will go into general fund and will be used for daily 

administrative operations.  GMA has provided us the language for the ordinance.   
 

Funding:  N/A 

 

Recommendation: Approve 

 

 
ATTACHMENTS: 

• License Fee Ordinance 

 

 
ATTACHMENTS: 

• Insurance License Fee Ordinance (PDF) 

12.A

Packet Pg. 3



12.A.a

Packet Pg. 4

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 In

su
ra

n
ce

 L
ic

en
se

 F
ee

 O
rd

in
an

ce
  (

27
11

 :
 2

n
d

 R
ea

d
in

g
 In

su
ra

n
ce

 C
o

m
p

an
y 

L
ic

en
se

 F
ee

)



12.A.a

Packet Pg. 5

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 In

su
ra

n
ce

 L
ic

en
se

 F
ee

 O
rd

in
an

ce
  (

27
11

 :
 2

n
d

 R
ea

d
in

g
 In

su
ra

n
ce

 C
o

m
p

an
y 

L
ic

en
se

 F
ee

)



12.A.a

Packet Pg. 6

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 In

su
ra

n
ce

 L
ic

en
se

 F
ee

 O
rd

in
an

ce
  (

27
11

 :
 2

n
d

 R
ea

d
in

g
 In

su
ra

n
ce

 C
o

m
p

an
y 

L
ic

en
se

 F
ee

)



 City Council Meeting: 07/28/22 07:00 PM 
 7224 GA Highway 21 Department: Development Services 
 Port Wentworth, GA  31407 Category: Ordinance 
  Prepared By: Melanie Ellis 

 SCHEDULED Department Head: Brian Harvey 

  

 AGENDA ITEM (ID # 2705) DOC ID: 2705  

Updated: 7/25/2022 3:58 PM by Zahnay Smoak  Page 1 

2nd Reading Zoning Map Amendment Application submitted 
by the City of Port Wentworth, for PIN #’s 70913 01013 (18 

Gulfstream Road), 70913 01012 (60 Clifton Boulevard), 70913 
01007 (84 Clifton Boulevard), 70913 01010 (Gulfstream Road), 

70913 01008 (34 Gulfstream Road), 70913 01011 (116 
Gulfstream Road), 70913 01001 (120 Gulfstream Road), 70914 

01001B (120 Gulfstream Road), 70914 01001A (Gulfstream 
Road), 70970A02004 (Gulfstream Road), 70970A02006 (20 
Mincey Boulevard), 70970A02007 (24 Mincey Boulevard), 

70970A02003 (32 Mincey Boulevard), 70914 01003 (46 Mincey 
Boulevard), 70914 01004 (60 Mincey Boulevard), and 

70970A01002 (190 Gulfstream Road) to zone the properties P-
I-2 (Planned Industrial) for the purpose of establishing City of 

Port Wentworth Zoning Districts. 

Issue/Item: 2nd Reading Zoning Map Amendment Application submitted by the City of 

Port Wentworth, for PIN #’s 70913 01013 (18 Gulfstream Road), 70913 01012 (60 Clifton 

Boulevard), 70913 01007 (84 Clifton Boulevard), 70913 01010 (Gulfstream Road), 70913 

01008 (34 Gulfstream Road), 70913 01011 (116 Gulfstream Road), 70913 01001 (120 

Gulfstream Road), 70914 01001B (120 Gulfstream Road), 70914 01001A (Gulfstream 

Road), 70970A02004 (Gulfstream Road), 70970A02006 (20 Mincey Boulevard), 

70970A02007 (24 Mincey Boulevard), 70970A02003 (32 Mincey Boulevard), 70914 01003 

(46 Mincey Boulevard), 70914 01004 (60 Mincey Boulevard), and 70970A01002 (190 

Gulfstream Road) to zone the properties P-I-2 (Planned Industrial) for the purpose of 

establishing City of Port Wentworth Zoning Districts. 

 

Background: These parcels was annexed by the City of Port Wentworth in 2014 and was 

never assigned City of Port Wentworth zoning.  

 

Facts and Findings:  

 

Funding: N/A 

 

Recommendation: The Planning Commission will hear this item on July 11, 2022 at 6:30 

PM. / UPDATE THE PLANNING COMMISSION VOTED 3-2 TO APPROVE THIS 

APPLICATION.  
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

• Annexation Gulfstream Rd Rezoning - map numbered (PDF) 

• Annexation Gulfstream Rd Rezoning - Map Number Key (PDF) 

12.B

Packet Pg. 7



Agenda Item (ID # 2705)  Meeting of July 28, 2022 

Updated: 7/25/2022 3:58 PM by Zahnay Smoak  Page 2 

• Annexation Gulfstream Rd Rezoning - APO Master List (PDF) 

12.B

Packet Pg. 8



Annexation Gulfstream Rd Rezoning

SAGIS

Property Boundaries (Parcels)
0 0.1 0.20.05 mi

0 0.2 0.40.1 km

1:9,028

SAGIS
SAGIS |

12.B.a

Packet Pg. 9

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

n
n

ex
at

io
n

 G
u

lf
st

re
am

 R
d

 R
ez

o
n

in
g

 -
 m

ap
 n

u
m

b
er

ed
  (

27
05

 :
 Z

M
A

 G
u

lf
st

re
am

 R
o

ad
 A

n
n

ex
at

io
n

 J
U

L
Y

 2
02

2 
2n

d
 R

ea
d

in
g

)

mellis
Rectangle

mellis
Text Box
2

mellis
Text Box
4

mellis
Text Box
6

mellis
Text Box
8

mellis
Text Box
10

mellis
Text Box
12

mellis
Text Box
14

mellis
Text Box
16

mellis
Text Box
1

mellis
Text Box
5

mellis
Text Box
9

mellis
Text Box
13

mellis
Text Box
3

mellis
Text Box
11

mellis
Text Box
7

mellis
Text Box
15



Map # PIN # Address Owner Estimated Acreage
Current 
Zoning 

Proposed 
Zoning

1 70913 01013 18 Gulfstream Rd Clifton Landfill Inc 8.66 PUD-IN P-I-2
2 70913 01012 60 Clifton Blvd Brasstown Chili LLC 2 PUD-IN P-I-2

3 70913 01007 84 Clifton Blvd
Savannah Regional Industrial Landfill In Republic 
Services Property Tax 120.52 PDR-IL P-I-2

4 70913 01010 Gulfstream Rd Clifton Landfill Inc 55.38 M P-I-2
5 70913 01008 34 Gulfstream Rd Sapp Capital Management LLC 2.9 M P-I-2
6 70913 01011 116 Gulfstream Rd 116 Gulfstream Road LLC 10.02 M P-I-2
7 70913 01001 120 Gulfstream Rd Georgia Power Company 17.25 PDR-L P-I-2
8 70914 01001B 120 Gulfstream Rd Georgia Power Company 8 PDR-L P-I-2
9 70914 01001A Gulfstream Rd Georgia Power Company 8 M P-I-2

10 70970A02004 Gulfstream Rd Williams Brothers Trucking Inc 3 PUD-IN P-I-2
11 70970A02006 20 Mincey Blvd Mincey Investments, LLC 1.02 PUD-IN P-I-2
12 70970A02007 24 Mincey Blvd Davenport & Smith Daniel & Jack 0.8 PUD-IN P-I-2
13 70970A02003 32 Mincey Blvd IG Mincey LLC 3.99 PUD-IN P-I-2
14 70914 01003 46 Mincey Blvd Gim Corporation 3.01 PUD-IN P-I-2
15 70914 01004 60 Mincey Blvd Sloan Theresa Joyce 2 PDR-IL P-I-2

16 70970A01002 190 Gulfstream Rd
Duke Realty Limited Partnership ATTN: VP, Property 
Management 9.99 PUD-IN P-I-2

Annexation Gulfstream Rd Rezoning Map Key

12.B.b

Packet Pg. 10

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

n
n

ex
at

io
n

 G
u

lf
st

re
am

 R
d

 R
ez

o
n

in
g

 -
 M

ap
 N

u
m

b
er

 K
ey

  (
27

05
 :

 Z
M

A
 G

u
lf

st
re

am
 R

o
ad

 A
n

n
ex

at
io

n
 J

U
L

Y
 2

02
2 

2n
d

 R
ea

d
in

g
)



PIN Owner Mailing_Address Mailing_City Mailing_State Mailing_Zip
70913 01007 SAVANNAH REGIONAL INDUSTRIAL LANDFILL IN PO BOX 29246 PHOENIX AZ 85038
70913 01008 SAPP CAPITAL MANAGEMENT LLC 34 GULFSTREAM ROAD PORT WENTWORTH GA 31407
70913 01010 CLIFTON LANDFILL INC PO BOX 7003 SAVANNAH GA 31418
70913 01011 116 GULFSTREAM ROAD LLC 9 CEDAR VIEW DR SAVANNAH GA 31410
70913 01012 BRASSTOWN CHILI LLC 315 COMMERCIAL DR STE B-7 SAVANNAH GA 31406
70913 01013 CLIFTON LANDFILL INC PO BOX 7003 SAVANNAH GA 31418
70914 01001A GEORGIA POWER COMPANY 241 RALPH MCGILL BLVD NE TAX DEPT.  BIN 10120 ATLANTA GA 30308
70914 01001B GEORGIA POWER COMPANY 241 RALPH MCGILL BLVD NE TAX DEPT.  BIN 10120 ATLANTA GA 30308
70914 01004 SLOAN THERESA JOYCE 103 LAKE TOMACHEECHEE DRIVE RINCON GA 31326
70970A02004 WILLIAMS BROTHERS TRUCKING INC PO BOX 188 HAZELHURST GA 31539
70970A02006 MINCEY INVESTMENTS, LLC 10 BRADLEY PINES DR SAVANNAH GA 31410
70970A02007 DAVENPORT & SMITH DANIEL & JACK PO BOX 7207 GARDEN CITY GA 31418
10970A03003 DUKE REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP PO BOX 40509 INDIANAPOLIS IN 46240
20912 01001 MAYOR & ALDERMEN OF SAVANNAH PO BOX 1027 SAVANNAH GA 31412
20912 01002 MAYOR & ALDERMEN OF SAVANNAH PO BOX 1027 SAVANNAH GA 31412
20970A04001 SOUTHERN REGION INDUSTRIAL REALTY INC C/O NORFOLK SOUTHERN TAX DEPT 650 W PEACHTREE ST. ATLANTA GA 30308
60892 01001 BOASSO AMERICA CORPORATION 1208 E KENNEDY BLVD SUITE 132 TAMPA FL 33602
60892 01002 BOASSO AMERICA CORPORATION 1208 E KENNEDY BLVD SUITE 132 TAMPA FL 33602
60892 01025 COMMERCE COURT INDUSTRIAL LLC C/O CRITERION GROUP, LLC, 28-18 STEINWAY LONG ISLAND CITY NY 11103
60892 01026 COMMERCE COURT INDUSTRIAL LLC C/O CRITERION GROUP, LLC, 28-18 STEINWAY LONG ISLAND CITY NY 11103
60892 01029 CENTERPOINT GARDEN CITY LLC 1808 SWIFT DRIVE SUITE A OAK BROOK II 60523
70970A01002 DUKE REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP PO BOX 40509 INDIANAPOLIS IN 46240
70970A02003 IG MINCEY LLC 261 FIFTH AVENUE SUITE 1501 NEW YORK NY 10016
20970 01001 STATE OF GEORGIA C/O COASTAL STATE PRISON POST OFFICE BOX 7150 GARDEN CITY GA 31418
70913 01001 GEORGIA POWER COMPANY 241 RALPH MCGILL BLVD NE TAX DEPT.  BIN 10120 ATLANTA GA 30308
70914 01003 GIM CORPORATION C/O C JAMES MCCALLER JR 115 W OGLETHORPE AVE SAVANNAH GA 31401
10916 01001 WAREHOUSE RENTALS LLC PO BOX 126 VALDOSTA GA 31601

12.B.c

Packet Pg. 11

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

n
n

ex
at

io
n

 G
u

lf
st

re
am

 R
d

 R
ez

o
n

in
g

 -
 A

P
O

 M
as

te
r 

L
is

t 
 (

27
05

 :
 Z

M
A

 G
u

lf
st

re
am

 R
o

ad
 A

n
n

ex
at

io
n

 J
U

L
Y

 2
02

2 
2n

d
 R

ea
d

in
g

)



 City Council Meeting: 07/28/22 07:00 PM 
 7224 GA Highway 21 Department: Administration 
 Port Wentworth, GA  31407 Category: Agreement 
  Prepared By: David Stahl 

 SCHEDULED Department Head: Steve Davis 

  

 AGENDA ITEM (ID # 2710) DOC ID: 2710  

Updated: 7/25/2022 2:51 PM by David Stahl  Page 1 

Technology Center Design and Build out 

Issue/Item: The city has a great need to expand its reach to our children. They city has 

taken the initiative to improve the quality of life provided within its city limits. By adding a 

Technology Center for the public, the city has the availability to not only expand our 

children’s knowledge but also expand the knowledge of adults entering the workforce in the 

present. 
 

Background: The city has never ventured into the atmosphere of providing a public service 

regarding education. With the joint efforts of council, the City of Port Wentworth can provide 

a first of its kind technology center to not only Port Wentworth but will also have the ability 

to set the standard regarding technology education in Chatham County and the surrounding 

area. 
 

Facts and Findings:  The city council recently approved the lease agreement pertaining to 

3 units located at 2 Magnolia Boulevard with the intentions of creating a technology center 

for the citizens. The plans before you represent the build out required to provide a state-of-

the-art technology lab. The build out is provided by the contractor that previously 

completed the build out pertaining to the Department of Finance and Human Resources for 

the City of Port Wentworth. This space will also house a substation for the police 

department. Giving the northern district the availability to conduct business, if need be, 

without traveling to the southern district. 
 

Funding:  $157,710.00 

 

Recommendation: Approve 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

• 2 MAGNOLIA BLVD UNITS C-D-E (PDF) 

• 2 Magnolia Blvd Estimate (PDF) 

13.A

Packet Pg. 12



13.A.a

Packet Pg. 13

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

 M
A

G
N

O
L

IA
 B

L
V

D
 U

N
IT

S
 C

-D
-E

  (
27

10
 :

 T
ec

h
n

o
lo

g
y 

C
en

te
r 

D
es

ig
n

 a
n

d
 B

u
ild

o
u

t)



13.A.a

Packet Pg. 14

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

 M
A

G
N

O
L

IA
 B

L
V

D
 U

N
IT

S
 C

-D
-E

  (
27

10
 :

 T
ec

h
n

o
lo

g
y 

C
en

te
r 

D
es

ig
n

 a
n

d
 B

u
ild

o
u

t)



13.A.a

Packet Pg. 15

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

 M
A

G
N

O
L

IA
 B

L
V

D
 U

N
IT

S
 C

-D
-E

  (
27

10
 :

 T
ec

h
n

o
lo

g
y 

C
en

te
r 

D
es

ig
n

 a
n

d
 B

u
ild

o
u

t)



Estimate
 
Excel Home Inspections And Construction
93 Cook Rd
Fleming, GA 31309
Mobile Phone: 912-429-2709
hockey4all46@yahoo.com

  Estimate Number: E220614193
Estimate Date: 06/14/2022
Payment Terms: Due With in 5 days
Estimate Amount: 157,710.00
Created By: Bruce Jacobs

 
Billing Address
2 Mag Units C, D, E Police
Portwentworth, GA

  Shipping Address
2 Mag Units C, D, E Police

Item # Item Name Quantity Unit Price Taxable Total

1072
Plumbing
Involving the extra restroom for the bulk occupancy requirements

1.00 4,200.00   4,200.00

1041
Framing Labor
Framing labor and materials for the of�ces and 1 restroom

1.00 5,700.00   5,700.00

1025 Electrical 1.00 15,000.00   15,000.00

1050
HVAC
All supply lines and returns for the buildout , the owner only
handles the main trucks

1.00 17,500.00   17,500.00

1052
Insulation
The between walls of the of�ce spaces for sound de�ection

1.00 1,200.00   1,200.00

1022
Drywall Hang
Drywall hang and �nish of�ce spaces and 1 restroom

1.00 6,000.00   6,000.00

1068
Painting
Walls prime and 2 coats color paint, doors and trim where needed

1.00 9,600.00   9,600.00

1020
Drop Ceiling
2*2 grid basic acoustical (tenant)

1.00 12,400.00   12,400.00

1036

Flooring
Vinyl plank throughout, commercial carpet in the 3 of�ces 
Material allowance for carpet: $1.45 a sq ft 
Material allowance for v plank: $ 2.95 a sq ft

1.00 17,800.00   17,800.00

1056
Int. trim mat
Int. trim material and labor doors , vinyl base

1.00 15,850.00   15,850.00

1048
Hardware
Door locks, bumps grab bars for 1 restroom, ect..

1.00 1,200.00   1,200.00

1058
Light �xture
2*4 led drop-ins

1.00 3,800.00   3,800.00

1043
Gen. Site Cle
Gen. Site clean throughout project

1.00 700.00   700.00

13.A.b

Packet Pg. 16

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

 M
ag

n
o

lia
 B

lv
d

 E
st

im
at

e 
 (

27
10

 :
 T

ec
h

n
o

lo
g

y 
C

en
te

r 
D

es
ig

n
 a

n
d

 B
u

ild
o

u
t)



 
Company Signature 07/13/2022

Comments:

In this day and age of in�ation and supply chain troubles
materials and labor cannot be held. Any substantial increase
will be sent via change order. Because of these issues no
hardline completion dates can be given.

Subtotal: $ 157,710.00

Estimate Amount $ 157,710.00

1105 Windows
Windows bulletproof upfront,one way in the back of�ce

1.00 15,200.00   15,200.00

1097 Temp Elect 1.00 1,400.00   1,400.00

1071
Plans /Bluepr
Plans /Blueprint architectural set from Meech

1.00 3,000.00   3,000.00

1122
Extinguishers
As required

1.00 360.00   360.00

1075
Rental Equip
19 ft Scissors lift for hvac supplies to tie to the owners trunk lines
and drop ceiling installation

1.00 1,200.00   1,200.00

1054
Int Cleaning
Final clean at the end of construction

1.00 1,200.00   1,200.00

1094
Superintenden
Gc margin %

1.00 23,700.00   23,700.00

1024
Dumpster
Construction debris

1.00 700.00   700.00

13.A.b

Packet Pg. 17

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

 M
ag

n
o

lia
 B

lv
d

 E
st

im
at

e 
 (

27
10

 :
 T

ec
h

n
o

lo
g

y 
C

en
te

r 
D

es
ig

n
 a

n
d

 B
u

ild
o

u
t)



 City Council Meeting: 07/28/22 07:00 PM 
 7224 GA Highway 21 Department: Development Services 
 Port Wentworth, GA  31407 Category: Planning/Zoning Item 
  Prepared By: Melanie Ellis 

 SCHEDULED Department Head: Brian Harvey 

  

 AGENDA ITEM (ID # 2704) DOC ID: 2704  

Updated: 7/20/2022 4:09 PM by Melanie Ellis  Page 1 

Site Plan Review Application submitted by Marc Liverman, 
P.E., Atlantic Coast Consulting, Inc., on behalf of Drayton-

Parker Companies, LLC., for PIN # 70035 01010 (Highway 21) 
for a Specific Development Site Plan to allow a Truck & 

Chassis Yard (Port Wentworth Truck and Chassis Storage 
Yard) in a P-I-1 (Planned Industrial) Zoning District 

Issue/Item: Site Plan Review Application submitted by Marc Liverman, P.E., Atlantic Coast 

Consulting, Inc., on behalf of Drayton-Parker Companies, LLC., for PIN # 70035 01010 

(Highway 21) for a Specific Development Site Plan to allow a Truck & Chassis Yard (Port 

Wentworth Truck and Chassis Storage Yard) in a P-I-1 (Planned Industrial) Zoning District 

 

Background: The subject property is currently vacant woodland. There are no buildings or 

structures on the subject property. This property was rezoned during the October 28, 2021 

regular City Council meeting.  

 

Facts and Findings: The developer is proposing to develop a gravel truck / chassis storage 

yard. The proposed plan includes truck / chassis parking spaces, car parking spaces, a 

2,000 square foot administration building and landscape screening along Highway 21. The 

project will also include associated drainage, and water and sewer utilities. This project is 

currently under review by City engineers T.R. Long Engineering.      

 

Funding: N/A 

 

Recommendation: The Planning Commission will hear this application on Monday, July 11, 

2022 at 6:30 PM. / UPDATE: THE PLANNING COMMISSION VOTED UNANIMOUSLY 

TO APPROVE THIS APPLICATION WITH THE CONDITION THAT THERE BE NO 

CONTAINER STACKING.  
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

• Truck and Chassis Yard 7-0035-01-010 Hwy 21 S-Site Plan JULY 2022 - Application (PDF) 

• Truck and Chassis Yard 7-0035-01-010 Hwy 21 S-Site Plan JULY 2022 - Timeline (DOCX) 

13.B

Packet Pg. 18



13.B.a

Packet Pg. 19

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

ru
ck

 a
n

d
 C

h
as

si
s 

Y
ar

d
 7

-0
03

5-
01

-0
10

 H
w

y 
21

 S
-S

it
e 

P
la

n
 J

U
L

Y
 2

02
2 

- 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

  (
27

04
 :

 S
it

e 
P

la
n

 R
ev

ie
w

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 (

S
p

ec
if

ic
)



13.B.a

Packet Pg. 20

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

ru
ck

 a
n

d
 C

h
as

si
s 

Y
ar

d
 7

-0
03

5-
01

-0
10

 H
w

y 
21

 S
-S

it
e 

P
la

n
 J

U
L

Y
 2

02
2 

- 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

  (
27

04
 :

 S
it

e 
P

la
n

 R
ev

ie
w

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 (

S
p

ec
if

ic
)



13.B.a

Packet Pg. 21

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

ru
ck

 a
n

d
 C

h
as

si
s 

Y
ar

d
 7

-0
03

5-
01

-0
10

 H
w

y 
21

 S
-S

it
e 

P
la

n
 J

U
L

Y
 2

02
2 

- 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

  (
27

04
 :

 S
it

e 
P

la
n

 R
ev

ie
w

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 (

S
p

ec
if

ic
)



13.B.a

Packet Pg. 22

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

ru
ck

 a
n

d
 C

h
as

si
s 

Y
ar

d
 7

-0
03

5-
01

-0
10

 H
w

y 
21

 S
-S

it
e 

P
la

n
 J

U
L

Y
 2

02
2 

- 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

  (
27

04
 :

 S
it

e 
P

la
n

 R
ev

ie
w

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 (

S
p

ec
if

ic
)



4968 

1 
 7/25/2022 3:57 PM 

Project Timeline 

Project Number: 220275 

Project Name: Pt Wentworth Truck & Chassis Storage Yard  

Applicant / Engineer: Marc Liverman, Atlantic Coast Consulting 

Owner: Drayton-Parker Companies, LLC 

City Review Engineer: Trent Long, TR Long  

 

• 5/24/2022 – Application received; Complete 

• 5/24/2022 – sent email to Marc Liverman, to contact us for a Pre-Application meeting prior to us 

processing the application.  

• 6/8/2022 – sent documents to TR Long for review.  

• 7/5/2022 – sent email to TR Long for review update. 

• 7/11/2022 – Planning Commission voted unanimously to approve the application with the 

condition that there be no container stacking.  

• 7/20/2022 – sent email to TR Long for review update. 

13.B.b

Packet Pg. 23

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

ru
ck

 a
n

d
 C

h
as

si
s 

Y
ar

d
 7

-0
03

5-
01

-0
10

 H
w

y 
21

 S
-S

it
e 

P
la

n
 J

U
L

Y
 2

02
2 

- 
T

im
el

in
e 

 (
27

04
 :

 S
it

e 
P

la
n

 R
ev

ie
w

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 (

S
p

ec
if

ic
) 

7-



 City Council Meeting: 07/28/22 07:00 PM 
 7224 GA Highway 21 Department: Development Services 
 Port Wentworth, GA  31407 Category: Planning/Zoning Item 
  Prepared By: Melanie Ellis 

 SCHEDULED Department Head: Brian Harvey 

  

 AGENDA ITEM (ID # 2703) DOC ID: 2703  

Updated: 7/21/2022 9:17 AM by Melanie Ellis  Page 1 

Site Plan Review Application submitted by Felipe Toledo, 
P.E., Thomas & Hutton of behalf of LRE Crossgate North, 

LLC., for PIN # 7-0035-01-007 (Northeast corner of Crossgate 
Rd & Jimmy Deloach Parkway) for a Specific Development 

Site Plan to allow a warehouse development (NFI Crossgate 
Industrial Park) in a P-I-1 (Planned Industrial) Zoning District 

Issue/Item: Site Plan Review Application submitted by Felipe Toledo, P.E., Thomas & 

Hutton of behalf of LRE Crossgate North, LLC., for PIN # 7-0035-01-007 (Northeast corner 

of Crossgate Rd & Jimmy Deloach Parkway) for a Specific Development Site Plan to allow a 

warehouse development (NFI Crossgate Industrial Park) in a P-I-1 (Planned Industrial) 

Zoning District 

 

Background: The subject property is currently vacant woodland. There are no buildings or 

structures on the subject property. The general development site plan for this project was 

approved during the March 8, 2022 City Council Meeting.  

 

Facts and Findings: The proposed project consist of a 332,450 s.f. warehouse and a 

96,250 s.f. warehouse with associated parking, utilities, drainage and infrastructure 

improvements. The entrance will be located off of Crossgate Road. The applicant provided a 

Traffic Impact Analysis with the general development plan. The site plan has been reviewed 

by City Engineer's T. R. Long Engineering and a concurrence letter issued. This project 

complies with the 2021-2041 City of Port Wentworth Comprehensive Plan.  

 

Funding: N/A 

 

Recommendation: The Planning Commission will hear this application on Monday, July 11, 

2022 at 6:30 PM. / UPDATE: THE PLANNING COMMISSION VOTED 3-1 TO APPROVE 

THE PROJECT WITH THE CONDITION THAT ADDITIONAL EVERGREEN PLANTINGS 

BE ADDED TO SHIELD NEIGHBORS.  
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

• NFI CROSSGATE 7-0035-01-007 S-SITE PLAN MAY 2022 - Application (PDF) 

• NFI CROSSGATE 7-0035-01-007 S-SITE PLAN MAY 2022 - Timeline (DOCX) 

• NFI CROSSGATE 7-0035-01-007 S-SITE PLAN MAY 2022 - Concurrence Letter TR Long 7.8.22 (PDF) 

13.C

Packet Pg. 24



13.C.a

Packet Pg. 25

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 N

F
I C

R
O

S
S

G
A

T
E

 7
-0

03
5-

01
-0

07
 S

-S
IT

E
 P

L
A

N
 M

A
Y

 2
02

2 
- 

A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
  (

27
03

 :
 S

it
e 

P
la

n
 R

ev
ie

w
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 (
S

p
ec

if
ic

) 
P

IN
 #

 7
-



13.C.a

Packet Pg. 26

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 N

F
I C

R
O

S
S

G
A

T
E

 7
-0

03
5-

01
-0

07
 S

-S
IT

E
 P

L
A

N
 M

A
Y

 2
02

2 
- 

A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
  (

27
03

 :
 S

it
e 

P
la

n
 R

ev
ie

w
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 (
S

p
ec

if
ic

) 
P

IN
 #

 7
-



13.C.a

Packet Pg. 27

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 N

F
I C

R
O

S
S

G
A

T
E

 7
-0

03
5-

01
-0

07
 S

-S
IT

E
 P

L
A

N
 M

A
Y

 2
02

2 
- 

A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
  (

27
03

 :
 S

it
e 

P
la

n
 R

ev
ie

w
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 (
S

p
ec

if
ic

) 
P

IN
 #

 7
-



13.C.a

Packet Pg. 28

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 N

F
I C

R
O

S
S

G
A

T
E

 7
-0

03
5-

01
-0

07
 S

-S
IT

E
 P

L
A

N
 M

A
Y

 2
02

2 
- 

A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
  (

27
03

 :
 S

it
e 

P
la

n



13.C.a

Packet Pg. 29

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 N

F
I C

R
O

S
S

G
A

T
E

 7
-0

03
5-

01
-0

07
 S

-S
IT

E
 P

L
A

N
 M

A
Y

 2
02

2 
- 

A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
  (

27
03

 :
 S

it
e 

P
la

n
 R

ev
ie

w
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 (
S

p
ec

if
ic

) 
P

IN
 #

 7
-



4964 

1 
 7/25/2022 3:57 PM 

Project Timeline 

Project Number: 220175 

Project Name: NFI Crossgate Industrial Park Specific Site Plan 7-0035-01-007 

Applicant / Engineer: Felipe Toledo, Thomas & Hutton 

Owner: LRE Crossgate North LLC 

City Review Engineer: TR Long 

 

• 3/16/2022 – application received; complete 

• 3/25/2022 – sent files to TR Long for review.  

• 4/20/2022 – received 1st comment letter from TR Long. Forwarded letter to T&H.  

• 5/7/2022 – received 1st resubmittal from T&H. TR Long copied on resubmission. 

• 5/9/2022 – Planning Commission voted to recommend tabling this item.  

• 5/26/2022 – Stan Fischer sent email asking to withdraw the item from the Council agenda. 

• 6/1/2022 – Resubmittal received from T&H. TR Long copied on email. 

• 6/6/2022 – received 2nd comment letter from TR Long.  

• 6/7/2022 – forwarded comment letter to T&H.  

• 6/13/2022 – Email received from Stan Fischer asking to be placed on the July 11, 2022 Planning 

Commission meeting.  

• 6/14/2022 – send email to Stan stating I will need 15 half size copies of the updated site plan by 

the end of the week to be placed back on the schedule.  

• 6/15/2022 – received 15 half size copies.  

• 7/8/2022 – Received concurrence letter from TR Long.  

• 7/11/2022 – forwarded concurrence letter to T&H 

• 7/11/2022 – Planning Commission voted 3-1 to approve the project with the condition that 

additional evergreen plantings be added to shield neighbors.  

13.C.b

Packet Pg. 30

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 N

F
I C

R
O

S
S

G
A

T
E

 7
-0

03
5-

01
-0

07
 S

-S
IT

E
 P

L
A

N
 M

A
Y

 2
02

2 
- 

T
im

el
in

e 
 (

27
03

 :
 S

it
e 

P
la

n
 R

ev
ie

w
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 (
S

p
ec

if
ic

) 
P

IN
 #

 7
-0

03
5-

01
-



 
July 8, 2022 
 
Mr. Brian Harvey 
City of Port Wentworth 
7224 Georgia Highway 21 
Port Wentworth, Georgia 31407 
 
Re:  NFI Industries Building A and B 
 Crossgate Industrial Park 

Port Wentworth, Georgia 
 
Dear Mr. Harvey, 
 
T. R. Long Engineering, P.C. has reviewed the entitled “Site Development for Buildings A & B at 
Crossgate Industrial Park” prepared by Thomas and Hutton dated February 14, 2022, and revised 
July 8, 2022. The specific development plan generally meets the intent of the development 
requirements in Port Wentworth. T. R. Long Engineering, P.C. concurs with the plans as 
presented with the exception of an off-site water main installation. 
 
There is a water main that needs to be installed to comply with the “Water, Sewer and Re-use 
Water Service Agreement” between the City of Port Wentworth and L-A Savannah Crossgate, 
LLC. IN order to meet the intent of this agreement a water main should be installed between 
Crossgate Boulevard and existing water main near Bonnybridge Road. T. R. Long Engineering 
recommends that the city and the developer enter into an agreement to design and install this 
water meter.  
 
Concurrence with the traffic impact analysis by T. R. Long Engineering, P.C. and Port Wentworth 
does not relieve the owner/developer, designer, engineer and contractor nor their representatives 
from their individual or collective responsibilities to comply with provisions of Local, State, and 
Federal regulations and/or ordinances. T. R. Long Engineering, P.C. and Port Wentworth review 
the submitted documents for completeness and general compliance with codes, ordinances 
and/or standards. No design liability can be assumed or assigned to T. R. Long Engineering, P.C., 
or Port Wentworth. All design liability remains with the professional engineer who signed and 
sealed those documents. Additionally, concurrence with the submitted documents and their intent 
is not to be construed as a check of every item submitted and does not prevent Port Wentworth 
from requiring corrections and/or addressing of omissions in the submitted documents and/or 
construction. 
 
Should you have any questions, comments or need additional information please contact us. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Trent R. Long, P.E. 

13.C.c

Packet Pg. 31

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 N

F
I C

R
O

S
S

G
A

T
E

 7
-0

03
5-

01
-0

07
 S

-S
IT

E
 P

L
A

N
 M

A
Y

 2
02

2 
- 

C
o

n
cu

rr
en

ce
 L

et
te

r 
T

R
 L

o
n

g
 7

.8
.2

2 
 (

27
03

 :
 S

it
e 

P
la

n
 R

ev
ie

w
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n



 City Council Meeting: 07/28/22 07:00 PM 
 7224 GA Highway 21 Department: Development Services 
 Port Wentworth, GA  31407 Category: Planning/Zoning Item 
  Prepared By: Melanie Ellis 

 SCHEDULED Department Head: Brian Harvey 

  

 AGENDA ITEM (ID # 2702) DOC ID: 2702  

Updated: 7/25/2022 5:15 PM by Zahnay Smoak  Page 1 

Site Plan Review Application submitted by Toss Allen, P.E., 
Allen Engineering Services, LLC., on behalf of Peachtree 

Development and Investments, LLC., for PIN # 7-0037-02-008 
(Magellan Blvd) for a Specific Development Site Plan to allow 

an Advanced Auto Parts Store in a P-C-3 (Planned General 
Business) Zoning District 

Issue/Item: Site Plan Review Application submitted by Toss Allen, P.E., Allen Engineering 

Services, LLC., on behalf of Peachtree Development and Investments, LLC., for PIN # 7-

0037-02-008 (Magellan Blvd) for a Specific Development Site Plan to allow an Advanced 

Auto Parts Store in a P-C-3 (Planned General Business) Zoning District 

 

Background: The subject property is currently vacant woodland. There are no buildings or 

structures on the subject property.  The general development plan for this project was 

approved during the April 28, 2022 regular City Council meeting.  

 

Facts and Findings: The subject parcel is located on Magellan Blvd. The specific site plan 

consist of a 6,889 square foot building with associated parking, stormwater detention and 

drainage. Access is proposed to be on Magellan Blvd and through the Murphy's gas station 

parking lot. This application is currently under review by City Engineers TR Long 

Engineering.  

 

 

Funding: N/A 

 

Recommendation: The Planning Commission will hear this application on Monday, July 11, 

2022 at 6:30 P.M. / UPDATE: THE PLANNING COMMISSION VOTED UNANIMOUSLY 

TO APPROVE THE APPLICATION.  
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

• Advanced Auto Parts 7-0037-02-008 S-SITE PLAN JULY 2022 - Application (PDF) 

• Advanced Auto Parts 7-0037-02-008 S-SITE PLAN JULY 2022 - Timeline (DOCX) 

13.D

Packet Pg. 32



13.D.a

Packet Pg. 33

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

d
va

n
ce

d
 A

u
to

 P
ar

ts
 7

-0
03

7-
02

-0
08

 S
-S

IT
E

 P
L

A
N

 J
U

L
Y

 2
02

2 
- 

A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
  (

27
02

 :
 S

it
e 

P
la

n
 R

ev
ie

w
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 A
d

va
n

ce
d

 A
u

to



13.D.a

Packet Pg. 34

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

d
va

n
ce

d
 A

u
to

 P
ar

ts
 7

-0
03

7-
02

-0
08

 S
-S

IT
E

 P
L

A
N

 J
U

L
Y

 2
02

2 
- 

A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
  (

27
02

 :
 S

it
e 

P
la

n
 R

ev
ie

w
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 A
d

va
n

ce
d

 A
u

to



13.D.a

Packet Pg. 35

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

d
va

n
ce

d
 A

u
to

 P
ar

ts
 7

-0
03

7-
02

-0
08

 S
-S

IT
E

 P
L

A
N

 J
U

L
Y

 2
02

2 
- 

A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
  (

27
02

 :
 S

it
e



13.D.a

Packet Pg. 36

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

d
va

n
ce

d
 A

u
to

 P
ar

ts
 7

-0
03

7-
02

-0
08

 S
-S

IT
E

 P
L

A
N

 J
U

L
Y

 2
02

2 
- 

A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
  (

27
02

 :
 S

it
e 

P
la

n
 R

ev
ie

w
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 A
d

va
n

ce
d

 A
u

to



4959 

1 
 7/25/2022 3:57 PM 

Project Timeline 

Project Number: 220276 

Project Name: Pt Wentworth Advanced Auto Parts  

Applicant / Engineer: Allen Engineering Services, LLC 

Owner: Peachtree Development and Investments, LLC 

City Review Engineer: TR Long   

 

• 5/27/2022 – Application received; Complete 

• 6/9/2022 – sent documents to TR Long for review.  

• 7/5/2022 – Sent update email to TR Long.  

• 7/8/2022 – received 1st comment letter from TR Long. Forwarded to Allen Engineering.  

• 7/11/2022 – Planning Commission voted unanimously to approve the project. 

• 7/12/2022 – received 1st return submittal. Forwarded to TR Long.  

13.D.b

Packet Pg. 37

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

d
va

n
ce

d
 A

u
to

 P
ar

ts
 7

-0
03

7-
02

-0
08

 S
-S

IT
E

 P
L

A
N

 J
U

L
Y

 2
02

2 
- 

T
im

el
in

e 
 (

27
02

 :
 S

it
e 

P
la

n
 R

ev
ie

w
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 A
d

va
n

ce
d

 A
u

to
 P

ar
ts


	Agenda Packet
	1. Call Meeting To Order
	2. Prayer and Pledge of Allegiance
	3. Roll Call - Clerk of Council
	Roll Call

	4. Approval of Agenda
	5. Recognition of Special Guests
	6. Public Comments - Registered Speakers
	7. Elections & Appointments
	8. Adoption of Minutes
	A. Regular Council Meeting Minutes - June 23, 2022

	9. Communications & Petitions
	10. Committee Reports
	11. Consent Agenda
	12. Unfinished Business
	A. 2711 : 2nd Reading Insurance Company License Fee
	Policy Paper: 2711 : 2nd Reading Insurance Company License Fee
	a. Insurance License Fee Ordinance

	B. 2705 : ZMA Gulfstream Road Annexation JULY 2022 2nd Reading
	Policy Paper: 2705 : ZMA Gulfstream Road Annexation JULY 2022 2nd Reading
	a. Annexation Gulfstream Rd Rezoning - map numbered
	b. Annexation Gulfstream Rd Rezoning - Map Number Key
	c. Annexation Gulfstream Rd Rezoning - APO Master List


	13. New Business
	A. 2710 : Technology Center Design and Buildout
	Policy Paper: 2710 : Technology Center Design and Buildout
	a. 2 MAGNOLIA BLVD UNITS C-D-E
	b. 2 Magnolia Blvd Estimate

	B. 2704 : Site Plan Review Application (Specific) 7-0035-01-010 HWY 21 Truck Yard JULY 2022
	Policy Paper: 2704 : Site Plan Review Application (Specific) 7-0035-01-010 HWY 21 Truck Yard JULY 2022
	a. Truck and Chassis Yard 7-0035-01-010 Hwy 21 S-Site Plan JULY 2022 - Application
	b. Truck and Chassis Yard 7-0035-01-010 Hwy 21 S-Site Plan JULY 2022 - Timeline

	C. 2703 : Site Plan Review Application (Specific) PIN # 7-0035-01-007 Crossgate Road NFI JULY 2022
	Policy Paper: 2703 : Site Plan Review Application (Specific) PIN # 7-0035-01-007 Crossgate Road NFI JULY 2022
	a. NFI CROSSGATE 7-0035-01-007 S-SITE PLAN MAY 2022 - Application
	b. NFI CROSSGATE 7-0035-01-007 S-SITE PLAN MAY 2022 - Timeline
	c. NFI CROSSGATE 7-0035-01-007 S-SITE PLAN MAY 2022 - Concurrence Letter TR Long 7.8.22

	D. 2702 : Site Plan Review Application Advanced Auto Parts 7-0037-02-008 (Specific) JULY 2022
	Policy Paper: 2702 : Site Plan Review Application Advanced Auto Parts 7-0037-02-008 (Specific) JULY 2022
	a. Advanced Auto Parts 7-0037-02-008 S-SITE PLAN JULY 2022 - Application
	b. Advanced Auto Parts 7-0037-02-008 S-SITE PLAN JULY 2022 - Timeline


	14. Resolutions/Ordinances/Proclamations
	15. Executive Session
	16. Adjournment

	Appendix
	12.A · 2711 : 2nd Reading Insurance Company License Fee
	12.A.a · Insurance License Fee Ordinance

	12.B · 2705 : ZMA Gulfstream Road Annexation JULY 2022 2nd Reading
	12.B.a · Annexation Gulfstream Rd Rezoning - map numbered
	12.B.b · Annexation Gulfstream Rd Rezoning - Map Number Key
	12.B.c · Annexation Gulfstream Rd Rezoning - APO Master List

	13.A · 2710 : Technology Center Design and Buildout
	13.A.a · 2 MAGNOLIA BLVD UNITS C-D-E
	13.A.b · 2 Magnolia Blvd Estimate

	13.B · 2704 : Site Plan Review Application (Specific) 7-0035-01-010 HWY 21 Truck Yard JULY 2022
	13.B.a · Truck and Chassis Yard 7-0035-01-010 Hwy 21 S-Site Plan JULY 2022 - Application
	13.B.b · Truck and Chassis Yard 7-0035-01-010 Hwy 21 S-Site Plan JULY 2022 - Timeline

	13.C · 2703 : Site Plan Review Application (Specific) PIN # 7-0035-01-007 Crossgate Road NFI JULY 2022
	13.C.a · NFI CROSSGATE 7-0035-01-007 S-SITE PLAN MAY 2022 - Application
	13.C.b · NFI CROSSGATE 7-0035-01-007 S-SITE PLAN MAY 2022 - Timeline
	13.C.c · NFI CROSSGATE 7-0035-01-007 S-SITE PLAN MAY 2022 - Concurrence Letter TR Long 7.8.22

	13.D · 2702 : Site Plan Review Application Advanced Auto Parts 7-0037-02-008 (Specific) JULY 2022
	13.D.a · Advanced Auto Parts 7-0037-02-008 S-SITE PLAN JULY 2022 - Application
	13.D.b · Advanced Auto Parts 7-0037-02-008 S-SITE PLAN JULY 2022 - Timeline



